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COMPLAINT FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER,
PRELIMINARY AND PERMANENT INJUNCTIONS,
AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

Plaintiff, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission™),
alleges as follows:

INTRODUCTION

L. This action arises from a series of frauds, one of which is ongoing; the rest of
which have ended. From 1991 to March 2000, defendant Roger A. Householder
(“Householder™), generally acting through his accounting firm, defendant Householder
Accounting, Inc. (“Householder Accounting™), and an investment advisory firm he registered
with the Commission, defendant Aapex Equity Advisors, Inc. (“Aapex Advisors™), engaged in a
series of fraudulent schemes by making misrepresentations and omissions of material facts to
investment advisory clients, recommending that they purchase various securities, including

interests in three investment funds, treasury bills and promissory notes. In each case,

| |
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Householder did not invest the money as he had represented, but misappropriated it to his own
purposes. More than 30 advisory clients lost more than $2.3 million in these earlier fraudulent
schemes. (The allegations relating to this earlier series of frauds are set forth below at
paragraphs 12 to 68). Now again, beginning in December 2001 and continuing to the present,
Householder is raising money by making misrepresentations and omissions of material facts
through his association with an investment adviser recently registered with the Commission,
defendant Apex Capital Management Corporation (“Apex Capital”), and a related unregistered
investment fund, defendant Apex Limited Partnership (“Apex L.P.”). Since December 2001,
Householder, Apex Capital and Apex L.P. have raised $600,000 from 4 investors, and have
raised at least another $192,000 from unknown sources. (The allegations relating to this ongoing
fraud are set forth below at paragraphs 69 to 76).

2. Householder, Apex Capital, Apex L.P., Householder Accounting, and Aapex
Advisors directly and indirectly, engaged in and, unless enjoined, will continue to engage in
transactions, acts, practices and courses of business which are violations of Section 17(a) of the
Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act™)[15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)], Section 10(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act™)[15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)], Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder [17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5], Sections 206(1), 206(2), 206(4) and 207 of the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940 (“Advisers Act”)[15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1), 80b-6(2), 80b-6(4) and 80b-7]
and Rule 206(4)-4 promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. 275.206(4)-4].

3. The Commission brings this action to enjoin such transactions, acts, practices and
courses of business and for other relief, pursuant to Sections 20(b) and 20(d) of the Securities

Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(b) and § 77t(d)], Sections 21(d) and 21(€) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C.
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§ 78u(d)] and Sections 209(d) and 209(e) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-9(d) and § 80b-

9(e)].
JURISDICTION

4. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 22(a) of the
Securities Act [15 U.8.C. § 77v(a)], Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78aa] and
Section 214 of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-14].

S. Defendants, diréctly and indirectly, made use of the means and instrumentalitics
of interstate commerce and of the mails in the Northern District of Illinois, and elsewhere, in
connection with the transactions, acts, practices and courses of business alleged herein.

6. Defendants will, unless enjoined, continue to engage in the acts, practices, and
courses of business set forth in this complaint and acts, practices, and courses of business of
similar purport and object,

THE DEFENDANTS

7. Householder, age 49, is a resident of Park Ridge, Illinois and a licensed certified
public accountant in the State of Illinois. Between 1991 and March of 2000, Householder
provided accounting, tax and investment advisory services through his firm, Householder
Accounting,.

8. Apex Capital is an Illinois corporation and an investment adviser that registered
with the Commission on December 7, 2001. Householder arranged for Apex Capital’s
formation, was its Director of Operations, its Accounting Director, and effectively runs the
business. On May 31, 2002, Apex Capital filed a Form ADV-W, advising that it sought to

withdraw its registration with the Commission.
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9. Apex L.P. is an Illinois limited partnership and hedge fund whose interests are
being sold by Householder and Apex Capital. (A hedge fund is an unregistered investment fund
that pools its investors’ assets and uses them to buy and sell securities). According to its offering
documents, Apex L.P. invests its assets alternately between cash and various mutual funds, as
determined by a market-timing model run by Apex Capital. Apex Capital is the sole general
partner of Apex L.P., is its investment adviser and is responsible for all of Apex L.P.’s
investment decistons.

10.  Householder Accounting is an Illinois corporation with its principal place of
business currently at Householder’s home in Park Ridge, Illinois. From at least 1991 through
March 2000, Householder provided accounting, tax and investment services through
Householder Accounting. Householder continues to provide accounting and tax services through
this company. Householder is Householder Accounting’s President and sole shareholder.

11.  Aapex Advisors is an Illinois corporation that registered \;;/ith the Commission as
an investment advisor in December 1998. Householder is President of Aapex Advisors, is one of
it directors and makes all of its investment decisions.

THE FRAUDULENT SCHEMES

12. Beginning in at least 1991, and continuing through March of 2000, Householder
acted as investment adviser to a number of his accounting clients and acquaintances,
recommending that they allow him to manage their assets or purchase securities through him and
his accounting firm. Householder and Householder Accounting conducted a series of schemes to
defraud these advisory clients by making fraudulent misrepresentations and omissions of
material fact in connection with the offer and sale of securities and when advising these clients

with respect to the management of their investments.
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13.  Householder used his position of trust as their accountant to learn of his clients’
finances, typically advising them that they could earn a better rate of return by investing through
him and Householder Accounting. In most cases, his clients advised Householder that they
wanted a safe investment. Houscholder then recommended one or more of several securities as
potential investments to his clients, or induced them to allow him to manage all -or a part of their
assets.

14.  In advising his clients to purchase securities or to invest with him, Houscholder
made a number of oral misrepresentations and omissions of material fact, described more fully
below, and in almost every case, Householder told a slightly different story. However,
Householder consistently misrepresented or omitted to state material facts about the existence of
the issuer of the security being offered, the uses of his clients’ assets, and, frequently, the safety
of the investment.

15.  After their purchase, Householder sent many of his clients fraudulent account
statements that purported to advise them of the value of their investments, nearly always
showing they had earned profits. Householder-also made oral representations about the profits
being earned by his clients. These statements were false, as Householder had not invested the
clients’ assets as represented.

16.  None of the money Householder obtained from his advisory clients was invested
as stated, and no investment for the benefit of his clients was ever made. Instead, Householder
misappropriated all of their assets and used them for his own purposes, including using new
client money to make payments to earlier clients, as in a Ponzi scheme, in order to give the false

illusion that their investments were successful.
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17.  Between 1991 and March of 2000, at least 30 people invested and lost more than
$2.3 million in Householder’s fraudulent schemes, as described more fully below.

Householder’s Fraudulent Promissory Note Offerings

18.  Householder recommended to several of his advisory clients that they purchase
promissory notes, representing that these notes would earn favorable rates of return (typically 10-

<6

15% per year) and that they were “safe,” “guaranteed” or “fully secured.”

19. At least four of Householder’s clients invested more than $852,000 in such
promissory notes.

20. The clients invested through Householder Accounting. After the investment,
Householder provided his clients with account statements that purported to show the value of
their investment, which had grown due to the interest received on the notes. As a result, nearly
all of his clients elected to “roll over” these notes from year to year, keeping their money
invested with Householder and Householder Accounting.

21.  Householder represented that these promissory notes were actual noteé 1ssued by
various companies, with the investment proceeds going to those entities, presumably to earn
money to pay the ihterest of 10-15% per year.

22.  Infact, the proceeds of the sale of these notes did not go to the purported issuers
of the notes, but were misappropriated by Householder through Householder Accounting.

23.  Householder also misrepresented the safety of these notes, since the notes merely

served as a conduit for Householder’s misappropriation and therefore, they could not be “safe,”

“guaranteed” or “fully secured” by the issuers business.
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24.  Householder, through Householder Accounting, made a number of payments to
the purchasers of these notes using other client money in order to give the false illusion that their
investments were profitable.

25. Of the $852,000 in notes sold by Householder, investors lost more than $395,000.

Householder's Fraudulent Scheme
Involving the Capital Enhancement Investment Fund,

26.  Capital Enhancement was incorporated by Householder in June of 1996 as an
Illinois limited liability company and was dissolved by the State of Illinois in November of 1997.

27. Householder told his clients that Capital Enhancement was an investment fund
that would pool his client’s investment to trade securities and he recommended Capital
Enhancement as in investment to a number of these clients. Householder offered and sold most
of the interests in Capital Enhancement to his advisory clients after it had already been dissolved.

28. Between October 1997 and January 1999, Householder offered and sold more
than $1.22 million in interests in Capital Enhancement to 14 advisory clients.

29.  Of'these 14 clients, 11 followed Householder’s suggestion to use their retirement
plan money (e.g., money in a self-directed IRA or a Keogh plan) to make the investment.

30.  Householder helped his clients set up their retirement plans and then prepared the
documents necessary for the plan to purchase shares of Capital Enhancement. Householder then
obtained checks made out to Capital Enhancement from the plan’s custodian, or directly from his
clients, and deposited them in a checking account in the name of Capital Enhancement.

31.  Householder made numerous misrepresentations and omissions in order to induce
his clients to purchase interests in Capital Enhancement.

32.  First, Householder misrepresented the existence and business of Capital

Enhancement to his clients, typically advising them that it was an operating, profitable fund,



Case 1:02-cv-04128 Document1l  Filed 06/10/2002 Page 8 of 26
N N

“like a mutual fund,” that it traded securities and that Householder managed the fund. In reality,
Capital Enhancement did not even exist, having been dissolved by the state, was not trading
securities or conducting any other business.

33. Second, Householder misrepresented the use of investment proceeds, stating that
his clients’ investments would go to Capital Enhancement and be used to trade securities.

34.  Inreality, Householder’s representations about the use of funds were false.
Rather than use the $1.22 million investment proceeds to make investments for the benefit of his
clients, Householder misappropriated these funds for his own use, transferring more than
$130,000 to himself, $356,000 to Householder Accounting, and transferring an additional
$244.,000 to two financially troubled bagel companies that Householder owned or in which he
held an interest. These entities were Glass City Bagels, Inc. and Heartland Bagels, Inc. (“the
Bagel Companies”). Householder was president of the Bagel Companies and sole owner of
Glass City Bagels. Both of these entities went out of business during 1998.

35.  Householder also misappropriated more than $100,000 of Capital Enhancement
proceeds and transferred it to Aapex Advisors. Householder, acting thorough Aapex Advisors,
then used this money as the investment advisers’ required start-up capital for the newly created
Aapex Fund. Thos money was then lost through Householder’s fraudulent trading on behalf of
the fund. (See Y7 59 to 68 below). Householder also used more than $260,000 of Capital
Enhancement money to make payments to earlier clients to give the false illusion that their
investments were successful.

36. Third, Householder misrepresented the safety of investing in Capital
Enhancement when he advised a number of his clients that Capital Enhancement was a “safe”

and “liquid” investment. These representations were also false, as Capital Enhancement was the
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opposite of a safe, liquid investment, being instead just a front for Householder’s fraudulent
scheme.

37.  Finally, Householder misrepresented the value of his clients’ interests in Capital
Enhancement by making oral statements and by sending account statements that represented that
their investments existed and had earned profits, when in fact, they were worthless. As a result
of this fraudulent scheme, Householder’s clients lost approximately $1.115 million.

Houscholder’s Fraudulent Scheme
Involving Aapex Advisors, an Investment Adviser Registered With the Commission

38.  Aapex Advisors was formed by Householder in November of 1998 and became
the investment adviser for the Aapex Fund in December of 1998. Householder arranged for
Aapex Advisors to be registered as an in investment adviser with the Commission in December
1998.

39.  From July 1998 to May of 1999, Householder offered and sold interests in Aapex
Advisors to four of his advisory clients who invested a total of $155,000.

40.  Householder made misrepresentations and omissions of material fact in order to
induce his clients to purchase interests in Aapex Advisors. Householder did not tell these clients
that they were investing in a registered investment adviser, but instead, stated that Aapex
Advisors was an investment fund that would use their investment dollars to trade securities.

41.  This representation was false, as Aapex Advisors either did not exist (for those
clients who purchased interests before November 1998) or was conducting business as the
investment adviser to the Aapex Fund, a registered investment company.

42.  Householder’s representation that Aapex would use his clients’ assets to trade

securities was also false, as in reality, Aapex Advisors never used its assets to trade securities.
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43, Of the $155,000 invested into Aapex Advisors, Householder transferred more
than $130,000 to himself, Householder Accounting, the Bagel Companies and to pay other non-
Aapex Advisor clients. The remaining money was spent on the business expenses of the Aapex
Fund and Aapex Advisors.

44, Householder also misrepresented the safety of this investment, as it had no
chance of producing a profit for his clients, being merely a conduit for money in Householder’s
fraudulent scheme.

45.  Householder’s clients who invested in Aapex Advisors lost all $155,000 pf their
investment.

Houscholder’s Fraudulent Scheme
Involving The Tarusa Commodity Group

46.  Taursa Commodity Group (“Taursa™), a limited partnership, was originally
formed as a commodities pool by Householder in the mid-1980s and it briefly traded
commodities.

47. Between 1991 and March 2000, at least five of Householder’s clients invested
more than $66,000 dollars in Taursa. |

48.  Householder misrepresented and omitted to disclose material facts about the use
of investment proceeds and the safety of this investment in order to induce his clients’ to invest
in Taursa and sent them false account statements after they invested.

49.  Householder represented to investors that Taursa was an investment fund and that
it would use his clients’ assets to trade commodities with the idea of making a profit. These
representations were false however, as rather than trade commodities or make any other
investment for the benefit of his clients, Householder misappropriated all of the $56,000 invested

in Taursa.

10
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50.  Householder also misrepresented the likelihood Taursa would make a profit, as it
had no chance of\producing a profit, being merely a conduit for money in Householder’s
fraudulent scheme.

51. Houscholder misrepresented to the investors the value of their interests in Taursa
by sending them account statements that purported to advise them as to the value of their

investments, showing that they had earned profits when in fact their investments were worthless.

Householder’s Fraudulent Scheme
in Connection with the Purchase of Treasury Bills for an Advisory Client.

52.  In May 1999, Householder discussed the advantages of purchasing Treasury Bills
with one his advisory clients and advised her that he would call her when he believed it was the
right time for her to purchase Treasury Bills. Shortly thereafter, Householder called the client
and represented that he had purchased $70,000 in Treasury bills for her throﬁgh Householder
Accounting. Householder directed the client to write a $70,000 check, payable to Householder
Accounting, as payment for the Treasury Bills.

53.  Householder then deposited the check in the account of Householder Accounting
and misappropriated the money, to pay himself, one of the Bagel Companies, and to make an
interest payment to one of the promissory note investors.

54.  Householder never purchased the Treasury bills as represented, and his client lost
her entire $70,000 investment.

Householders Investment Advisory Fraud
Against His Accounting Clients

55.  Between 1991 and March of 2000, Householder persuaded three elderly clients to

allow him to manage their assets with complete discretion to select the investments.

11
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56.  Householder took advantage of his position of trust as their accountant in order to
induce clients to allow him to be their investment adviser. In this way, Householder obtained
control of more than $1.3 million.

57.  Householder then transferred most of these assets to Householder Accounting,
and spent it for his own use.

58.  While Householder later orally represented to these clients that their investments
were doing well, in each case, Householder did not make investments for the clients as stated,
but misappropriated their assets. While Householder did pay much of these clients’ assets back
to them, part of these payments came from other advisory clients, as in a Ponzi scheme.
Householder’s clients lost more than $ 514,000 in this fraudulent scheme. -

Householder’s Investment Advisory Fraud
In Connection With the Aapex Fund

59.  Householder, acting through his registered investment advisory firm, Aapex
Advisors, also committed fraud in connection with advisory services provided to the Aapex
Fund, a registered investment company.

60. Householder formed and ran Aapex Advisors, an investment adviser registered
with the Comrission since December 1998. Aapex Advisors was the investment adviser to the
Aapex Fund, purportedly a diversified investment company registered with the Commission.

6l. Householder was President of both the Aapex Fund and of Aapex Advisors, and
through Aapex Advisors, was responsible for making all of the investment decisions for the fund.

62. During the first five months of 1999, five outside investors invested a total of
$19,888 in the Aapex Fund, and $100,000 was provided by Aapex Advisors as the required

“seed money” under Section 14(a) of the Investment Company Act. As alleged above in

12
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paragraph 35, Householder misappropriated this seed money from other investors in his Capital
Enhancement scheme.

63.  The Aapex Fund’s registration statement, filed with the Commission, is dated
January 14, 1999, was signed by Householder, and incorporated the Aapex Fund’s Prospectus
and Statement of Additional Information.

64.  The registration statement states, under the heading “Investment Objectives and
Policies,” that: “The Fund is a diversified mutual fund whose primary investment objective is
growth of capital. The Fund seeks to achieve its objective by investing primarily in a diversified
portfolio of common stock and securities convertible into common stock. There can be no
assurance that the Fund's investment objective will be achieved. Diversification means limiting

~ the amount of Fund assets invested in any one issuer and limiting the amount of Fund assets

invested in any one industry, thereby reducing the risks of losses incurred by that issuer or

industry.” (Emphasis added).

65.  In addition, the registration statement contained a series of restrictions on the
Aapex Fund’s investments, stating, that the fund would not: (1) invest more than 25% of its total
assets in the securities of a single industry; (2) as to the remaining 75% of its assets, invest more
than 5% in the assets of single issuer; and (3) make short sales of securities that exceeded 25% of
its total assets, and would only make short sales if it maintained a segregated account of cash or
other liquid debt securities in an amount equal to such short sales.

66.  Shortly after starting the Aapex Fund, Householder, through Aapex Advisors,
began trading on behalf of the fund in violation of the restrictions set forth above and, within

four months, had lost all of the funds’ assets through such prohibited trading.

13
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67.  Much of Householder and Aapex Advisors’ prohibited trading was in obvious and
egregious violation of the trading restrictions. For example, on May 18, 19 and 27, Householder
engaged in day-trading that resulted in roughly 2500%, 2700%, and 4700% respectively of the
fund’s total assets being invested in the securities of a single issuer, thus violating both of the
above mentioned restrictions on concentration of assets (i.e., investing more than 25% of the
fund’s assets in a single industry and, as to the remaining 75% of the fund’s assets, investing
. more than 5% in the securities of a single issuer). In addition, on May 20", Householder sold
short securities equal to approximately 60% of the funds assets, without even bothering to open
the required segregated account to cover the sales, thus violating the restrictions on short selling.

68.  Householder’s trading substantially increased the risk of investing in the Aapex
Fund over that represented in the prospectus and statement of additional information, and quickly
resulted in the loss of all of the fund’s assets.

Houscholder’s Current, Ongoing Fraud
in the Offer and Sale of Interests In Apex L.P.

69.  Beginning in or about December 2001, Apex Capital was registered as an
investment adviser with the Commission. On its Form ADV (the form used to register with the
Commission) Apex Capital lists Householder as “Accounting Difector,” and contact person.
However, Householder runs Apex Capital, and is effectively its president.

70.  Apex Capital is the sole general partner and investment adviser for Apex L.P., an
unregistered investment fund that Householder and Apex Capital offered and sold to their
advisory clients.

71.  Apex L.P. is an investment fund that invests in either cash or various mutual

funds, determined by a market-timing model run by Apex Capital.

14
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72. Apex L.P. investors received offering documents advising them that Householder
is one of the principals of Apex Capital, and describing Householder’s qualifications and
background.

73.  These offering documents represent, among other things, that Householder has
substantial experience in the securities and commodities industry. The offen'ﬁg documents do
not make any reference to Householder’s prior disciplinary history, failing to disclose that in
October of 2000, the State of Iilinois found that Householder violated the Illinois securities laws
and permanently prohibited Householder from “[o]ffering or selling securities in or from the
State of Illinois,” and from “[r]endering investment advice for a fee in or from the State of
Illinois.”

74.  Through the use of this false offering document, Householder, Apex Capital and
Apex L.P. have fraudulently raised more than $600,000 from at least 4 investors to whom they
sold Apex L.P. securities,

75.  Householder, Apex Capital and Apex L.P. have raised at least an additional
$192,000 from unknown sources.

76.  Houscholder and Apex Capital also failed to disclose the State 6f Hlinois findings
and order against prohibition against Householder on Apex Capital’s Form ADV.

COUNT1I
Violations of Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act

77.  Paragraphs 1 through 76 are realleged and incorporated by reference as though

fully set forth herein.
78.  During the periods alleged above, Householder, Apex Capital, Apex L.P.,
Houscholder Accounting and Aapex Advisors, in connection with the offer and sale of securities,

by the use of the means and instruments of transportation and communication in interstate

15



Case 1:02-cv-04128 Document1l  Filed 06/10/2002 Page 16 of 26
N N

commerce and by use of the mails, directly and indirectly, have emp_loyed and are employing
dévices, schemes and artifices to defraud.

79.  Householder, Apex Capital, Apex L.P., Houscholder Accounting and Aapex
Advisors, knew or were reckless in not knowing of the activities described in paragraphs 77 to
78 above.

80. By reason of the activities described in paragraphs 77 through 79 above,
Householder, Apex Capital, Apex L.P., Householder Accouﬁting and Aapex Advisors violated
Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §77q(a)(1)]-

COUNT 11
Violations of Section 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act

81.  Paragraphs 1 through 76 are realleged and incorporated by reference as though
fully set forth herein.

82.  During the periods alleged above, Householder, Apex Capital, Apex L.P.,
Householder Accounting and Aapex Advisors, in connection with the offer and sale of securities,
by the use of the means and instruments of transportation énd communication in interstate
commerce and by use of the mails, directly and indirectly, have obtained money and property by
means of untrue statements of material facts and have and are omitting to state material facts
necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading; and have engaged and are engaging in transactions, acts, practices
and courses of business which operated and will operate as a fraud and deceit upon the
purchasers.

83.  Byreason of the activities described in paragraphs 81 and 82 above, Householder,
Apex Capital, Apex L.P., Householder Accounting and Aapex Advisors violated Section

17(2)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 77q(a)(2) and 77q(a)(3)].

16
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COUNT III
Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 Thereunder

84.  Paragraphs 1 through 76 are realleged and incorporated by reference as though
fully set forth herein.

85.  During the periods alleged above, Householder, Apex Capital, Apex L.P.,
Householder Accounting and Aapex Advisors in connection with the purchase and sale of
securities, by the use of means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce and of the mails,
directly or indirectly, have employed and are employing dévices, schemes, and artifices to
defraud; have made untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state material facts
necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; and engaged in acts, practices or courses of business which
would and did operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchasers and sellers of such securities.

86.  Householder, Apex Capital, Apex L.P., Householder Accouﬂting and Aapex
Advisors knew or were reckless in not knowing of the activities described in paragraphs 84 and
85 above.

87.  Byreason of the activities described in paragraphs 84 through 86 above,
Householder, Apex Capital, Apex L.P., Houscholder Accounting and Aapex Advisors violated
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §78j(b)], Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder [17

C.F.R. 240.10b-5].

17
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COUNT 1V
Violations of Sections 206(1) of the Advisers Act

88.  Paragraphs 1 through 76 are realleged and incorporated by reference as though
fully set forth herein.

89.  During the relevant period, while acting as an investment adviser, Houscholder,
Apex Capital, Householder Accounting and Aapex Advisors, by use of the mails and the means
and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, directly or indirectly: employed devices, schemes
or artifices to defraud clients and prospective clients.

90. Householder, Apex Capital, Houscholder Accounting and Aapex Advisors knew
or was reckless in not knowing of the activities described in paragraphs 88 and 89 above.

91. By reason of the activities described in paragraphs 88 through 90 above,
Householder, Apex Capital, Householder Accounting and Aapex Advisors violated Section
206(1) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §80b-6(1)].

COUNT V
Yiolations of Sections 206(2) of the Advisers Act

92.  Paragraphs 1 through 76 are realleged and incorporated by reference as though
fully set forth herein.

93.  During the relevant period,_ while acting as an investment adviser, Householder,
Apex Capital, Householder Accounting, and Aapex Advisors, by use of the mails or the means or
instrumentalities of interstate commerce, directly or indirectly: employed devices, schemes or
artifices to defraud clients and prospective clients; or engaged in transactions, practices, and

courses of business which operated as a frand or deceit upon clients and prospective clients.

18
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94. By reason of the activities described in paragraphs 92 through 93 above,
Householder, Apex Capital, Householder Accounting and Aapex Advisors violated Section
206(2) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §80b-6(2)].

COUNT VI
Violations of Section 206(4) of the Advisers Act And Rule 206(4)-4 Thereunder

95.  Paragraphs 69 through 76 are realleged and incorporated by reference as though
fully set forth herein.

96.  During the relevant period, while acting as an investment adviser, Householder
and Apex Capital, by use of the mails or the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce,
directly or indirectly: engaged in acts, pra(-:tices, and courses of business which are fraudulent,
deceptive and manipulative, as those terms have been defined by the Commission by rules and
regulations.

97.  Byreason of the activities described in paragraphs 95 through 96 above,
Householder and Apex Capital violated Section 206(4) of the Advisers Act {15 U.S.C. §80b-
6(4)] and Rule 206(4)-4 thereunder [17 C.F.R. 275.206(4)-4].

COUNT VII
Violation of Section 207 of the Advisers Act

98.  Paragraphs 69 through 76 are realleged and incorporated by reference as though
fully set forth herein.

99.  During the relevant period, Householder and Apex Capital willfully made untrue
statements of material fact in Apex Capital’s Form ADV filed with the Commission, and omitted

to state material facts required to be stated therein.

L]
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100. By reason of the activities described in paragraphs 98 through 100 above,
Householder and Apex Capital violated Section 207 of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §80b-7].

WHEREFORE, the Commission requests that the Court:

I

Find that defendants Householder, Apex Capital, Apex L.P., Householder Accounting

and Aapex Advisors committed the violations charged and alleged herein.
II.

Enter a temporary restraining order, and orders of preliminary and permanent injunction,
in a form consistent with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, restraining and
enjoining defendants Householder, Apex Capital and Apex L.P., and their officers, agents,
servants, employees and attorneys, and those persons in active concert or participation with any
of the foregoing who receive actual notice of such order, by personal service or otherwise, and
each of them, from directly or indirectly, engaging in the transactions, acts, practices or courses
of business described above, or in conduct of similar purport and object, in violation of Sections
17(a)(1), 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §77q(a)(1), §77q(a}(2) and
§77q(a)(3)], Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act {15 U.S.C. §78j(b)], Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder [17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5}, Sections 206(1), 206(2), 206(4) and 207 of the Advisers Act
{15 U.S.C. §§80b-6(1), 80b-6(2), 80b-6(4) and 80b-7] and Rule 206(4)-4 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §

275.206(4)-4].
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IIL.

Enter a temporary restraining order and orders of preliminary and permanent injunction,
in a form consistent with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, restraining and
enjoining defendants Householder, Apex Capital, and Apex L.P., their officers, agents, servants,
employees, attorneys and those persons in active concert or participation with them who receive
actual notice of such orders, by personal service or otherwise, and each of them from, directly or
indirectly:

A, transferring, selling, assigning, pledging, dissipating, concealing or otherwise
disposing of in any manner, any funds, assets, accounts or other property belonging to, or
directly or indirectly, in the possession, custody or control of defendants Householder, Apex
Capital and Apex L.P., or in which these defendants have a beneficial interest, wherever located,
included but not limited to the assets of Householder Accounting;

B. transferring, selling, assigning, pledging, dissipating, concealing or otherwise
disposing of in any manner, any funds, assets, accounts or other property into which investor
funds were deposited; and

C. destroying, mutilating, concealing, altering or disposing of, in any manner, any of
the books, records, documents, correspondence, brochures, manuals, obligations, belonging to, or
directly or indirectly in the possession, custody or control of defendants, in whatever form,

including electronic, and wherever located.
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IV.

Enter an order requiring defendants Householder, Apex Capital, and Apex L.P. to:

A. provide the Commission, within 3 days of the issuance of the temporary
restraining order, with: (1) an accounting of all of the funds received, directly or indirectly, from
individuals who gave Householder, Apex Capital and Apex L.P. money for investment, the uses
to which such funds were put, and the amounts of any remaining funds and their location; and (2)
an accounting of the assets and liabilities of Householder, Apex Capital and Apex L.P. and their
location;

B. produce to the Commission, within 3 days of the issuance of the temporary
restraining order, all books, records and other documents supporting or underlying the
accounting provided to the Commission pursuant to paragraph IV.A. above; and

C. produce to the Commission, within 3 days of the issuance of the temporary

restraining order, all current accountant’s reports, bank statements, documents indicating

title to real or personal property, and any other indicia of ownership or interest in
property of Householder, Apex Capital and Apek L.P., which indicia of ownership or
interest are now in the Defendants’ actual or constructive possession; provided, however,
that nothing in the order shall be construed to require defendant Householder to abandon
any constitutional or other legal privilege which he may have available to him.

V.

Enter an Order appointing a receiver to marshal and preserve and manage the assets of
defendants Householder, Apex Capital and Apex L.P., including, without limitation, the assets of

Householder Accounting.
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VI
Issue an order of permanent injunction, in a form consistent with Rule 65(d) of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, restraining and enjoining defendants Houscholder,
Householder Accounting and Aapex Advisors and their officers, agents, servants, employees and
attorneys, and those persons in active concert or participation with any of the foregoing who
receive actual notice of such order, by personal service or otherwise, and each of them, from
directly or indirectly, engaging in the transactions, acts, practices or courses of business
described above, or in conduct of similar purport and object, in violation of Sections 17(a)(1),
17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §77q(a)(1), §77q(a)(2) and §77q(2)(3)],
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §78j(b)], Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder [17
C.F.R. 240.10b-5], Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §§80b-6(1), 80b-
6(2), 80b-6(4) and 80b-7}.
VIIL
Enter an Order requiring defendants to disgorge the ill-gotten gains that they received as
a result of their wrongful conduct, including prejudgment interest.
VIIL
Enter an order imposing upon defendants Householder, Apex Capital, Householder
Accounting and Aapex Advisors appropriate civil penalties pursuant to Section 20(d) of the
Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §77t(d)], Section 20(d)(3) of the Exchange Act {15 U.S.C. §78u(d)(3)]

and Section 209(e) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §80b-9(c)].
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IX.
Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the principals of equity and the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in order to implement and carry out the terms of all orders and
decrees that may be entered or to entertain any suitable application or motion for additional relief

within the jurisdiction of this Court.

X.

Grant orders for such further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

KristoplierS. Heston, Illinois Bar No. 6204816
Pravin B. Rao, Illinois Bar No. 6230097
Attorneys for Plaintiff
Securities and Exchange Commission
175 W. Jackson Boulevard
Suite 900
Chicago, Illinois 60604-2615
(312) 353-7390

Dated: June 10, 2002
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